
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

December 16, 2015 6
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 8
Warrants

Accounts Payable 15
Resolution Accepting the California Avenue Reconstruction
Project

Staff Report - California Reconstruction Acceptance 28
Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 364 S.
Goldenrod Avenue and 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue

Staff Report - Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 30
Renewal of Memorandum of Understanding with Fresno County
Rural Transit Agency for Public Transit Safety and Security
Services.

Staff Report - Transportation Safety and Security 41
Request for Donation from Kerman Pop Warner Cheer-Senior
Team

Request Letter 43
Resolution Approving Addendum to Adopted Negative
Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service
Project (SCH #2013121030)

Staff Report - Double L Addendum 44
Resolution and Recommendation for Submittal of Applications
for Federal Transportation Funds

Staff Report - 2015 COG Applications 101
Direction Regarding 4th Street Concrete Repairs

Staff Report - 4th Street Concrete 107

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, January 6, 2016 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be 
used to recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no 
one steps forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our 
thoughts on how best to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

None 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the Mayor 
will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is prohibited by 
law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. Speakers are asked 
to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 
  

2



 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is 
desired, a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed 
from the Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 
A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: December 16, 2015   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

November 22-December 5, 2015: $130,759.43; Retro Pay & Other: $5,378.07; Overtime: 
$2,098.96; Holiday at 1/2 time: $1,857.66; Standby: $1,135.38: Comp Time Earned: 
79.50; Uniform Pay: $6,075.00; Holiday Pay: $20,109.44 
 
December 6-19, 2015: $137,818.70; Retro Pay & Other: $961.74; Overtime: $4,229.42; 
Standby: $1,033.44; Comp Time Earned: 63.75 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1.  Nos. 7743-7843 $560,841.77     
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting the California Avenue Reconstruction Project (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution accepting the California 
Avenue Reconstruction Project and authorize the city engineer to record the Notice of 
Completion.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - California Reconstruction Acceptance     
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 364 S. Goldenrod 
Avenue and 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving agreements for 
utility service for Julian and Gloria Torres at 364 S. Goldenrod Avenue and Tony 
Martinez at 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements     

3



 
F. SUBJECT: Renewal of Memorandum of Understanding with Fresno County Rural Transit 

Agency for Public Transit Safety and Security Services. (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve the renewal of the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Fresno County Rural Transit Agency for Public Transit and 
Security Services and authorize the city manager to execute the agreement.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Transportation Safety and Security     
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Request for Donation from Kerman Pop Warner Cheer-Senior Team (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council review request and direct staff according. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Request Letter   
 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Addendum to Adopted Negative Declaration for the 
Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project (SCH #2013121030) (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Addendum to 
Adopted Negative Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project 
(SCH #2013121030) and authorize staff to file the Notice of Determination. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Double L Addendum   
 

C. SUBJECT: Resolution and Recommendation for Submittal of Applications for Federal 
Transportation Funds (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve the submission of applications for Federal 
Transportation Funding to the Fresno Council of Governments and adopt resolution 
supporting and implementing AB 1012 “Timely Use of Funding”. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - 2015 COG Applications   
 

D. SUBJECT: Direction Regarding 4th Street Concrete Repairs (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council provide direction to staff on how to proceed with the 
repair of concrete improvements on 4th Street. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - 4th Street Concrete   

  

4



 
5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

 
6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

1. Board of Supervisors Designation of Officers for 2016, Tuesday, January 12 at 9 a.m., 
Fresno Hall of Records, 2281 Tulare Street, Third Floor 

 
7. CLOSED SESSION 

 
None 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
Agenda packet is available for review 72 hours prior to the meeting at the city clerk’s office and on the 
city website. Items received at the meeting will be available for review at the city clerk’s office. 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

5



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, December 16, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, 
Finance Director, Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:38 P.M. 

• Roll Call All present 
except GY 

• Invocation NF 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
RA/BN (4-0-1) 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Presentation of New POW/MIA Flag from the VFW Post 8470 (MR) Presented 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL None 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 

Approved 
excepting 2C.1. 
BN/NF (4-0-1) 
GY.  

B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

Payroll Report: November 8-21, 2015: $129,995.13; OT: $4,140.08; 
Holiday OT at 1/2: $1,466.72; Standby: $1,440.05: Comp Time: 47.25      

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented.  

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  Approved 
BN/NF 7658 & 
7695 
(3-0-1-1) 
GY/RA recuse 
employee  

1. Nos. 7619-7700: $328,639.94 
2. Excepting - Sebastian: #7658-$205.00; #7695-$2,698.64 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

 

D. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Leak Notification Report (KM)  

RECOMMENDATION: Informational Only      

6



E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending November 30, 2015 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment report as 
presented     

 

F. SUBJECT: Resolution Designating City Manager John Kunkel as an 
Additional Check Signer for City Bank Accounts (TJ) 

Res 15-71 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing City 
Manager John Kunkel as an additional check signer for City bank accounts 
and removing temporary appointment of Councilwoman Armstrong.     

6:50 p.m. GY 
arrived. 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Appointing Members to the Planning Commission 
and Announcement of Votes (MR) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution appointing three 
applicants to the Planning Commission for three-year terms ending 
December 31, 2018. 
 
*appointing Leopoldo Espino Bob Epperson &Kevin Nehring 

RA 
Recused/left 
meeting/6:55 
p.m. 1 
applicant is 
employee of 
Sebastian. 
 
Approved 
BN/NF *  
(4-0-1) RA 
 

Res 15-72 
 

7:21 p.m. RA 
returned to 
mtg. 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving the Purchase of Easements for the 
Vineland Avenue Widening Project and Accepting the Easements  for 
Public Use (JJ) 

 
 
Approved 
NF/RA (5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution approving 
the purchase of easements for the Vineland Avenue Widening Project and 
accepting the easements for public use. 

Res 15-73 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

7. CLOSED SESSION None 

8. ADJOURNMENT Approved 
GY/RA (5-0-0) 
7:40 p.m. 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that 
the above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the 
first date above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: December 17, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



Accounts Payable

User:

Printed: 

jcamacho

12/29/2015  2:15 PM

Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date

Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10147 Employment Development Department 12/11/2015ACH
12112015 C PR TAX DEPOSIT 12/11/15 SIT PAYABLE=PIT AMOUNT  4,162.05

12112015 C PR TAX DEPOSIT 12/11/15 SDI PAYABLE=SDI AMOUNT  1,415.63

 5,577.68Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10147:

10517 Federal Taxes-Payroll 12/11/2015ACH
12112015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT 12/11/15 FIT PAYABLE=TAX WITHHOLDING  15,264.72

12112015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT 12/11/15 FICA PAYABLE=SOCIAL SECURITY  20,617.40

12112015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT 12/11/15 FICA MED PAYABLE=MEDICARE  4,821.60

 40,703.72Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10517:

10518 Kerman Police Officers Assn. 12/11/2015ACH
12112015 C MEMBERSHIP DUES 12/11/15  648.12

 648.12Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10518:

10519 Kerman Municipal Employees Assn. 12/11/2015ACH
12112015 C MEMBERSHIP DUES 12/11/2015  165.00

 165.00Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10519:

10520 ICMA-RC 12/11/2015ACH
12112015 C DEFERRED COMP 12/11/15  3,294.40

 3,294.40Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10520:

10522 CalPERS 12/11/2015ACH
12112015 C EMPLOYER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS  12,833.68

12112015 EMPLOYEE PAID CONTRIBUTIONS  10,190.43

12112015 ROUNDING ADJ -0.03

12112015 ADJ-JOSIE CAMACHO -4.70

 23,019.38Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10522:

 73,408.30Total for 12/11/2015:

10923 AMBER CHEMICAL INC 12/15/20157743
0333186-IN WTR-100 GL BULK CHLORINE  227.27

 227.27Total for Check Number 7743:

10730 ERIC ANTUNA 12/15/20157744
12102015 PD-COMMUTER LUNCHES PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS  24.00

 24.00Total for Check Number 7744:

10962 TOM CHAPMAN 12/15/20157745
12102015 PD-3 COMMUTER LUNCHES PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS  24.00

Page 1AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

15

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10147
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10517
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10518
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10519
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10522
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10923
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10730
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10962


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 24.00Total for Check Number 7745:

10452 CITY OF FRESNO WMD 12/15/20157746
K120215 WTR-LAB ANALYSIS  75.00

K120215 SWR-LAB ANALYSIS  76.00

 151.00Total for Check Number 7746:

10106 CONSOLIDATED EDISON SOLUTIONS 12/15/20157747
2704868 SWR-SOLAR POWER 11/01/15-12/01/15  6,779.21

 6,779.21Total for Check Number 7747:

10107 CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTRB 12/15/20157748
2574-755135 STRTC-ELECTRICAL WORK ON MEDIANS  416.54

2574-755252 STRTC-ELECTRICAL WORK ON MEDIANS  41.13

 457.67Total for Check Number 7748:

10114 CROWN SHORT LOAD CONCRETE 12/15/20157749
89017 CS-CONCRETE FOR KATIES PARK  591.99

 591.99Total for Check Number 7749:

10118 DAPPER TIRE 12/15/20157750
42642373 V/E REP-4 TIRES FOR #1424  541.20

 541.20Total for Check Number 7750:

10141 EAST BAY TIRE CO. 12/15/20157751
1210953 V/E REP-4 TIRES FOR #1395  418.26

 418.26Total for Check Number 7751:

10151 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 12/15/20157752
693394 PARKS-VALVE SUPPLIES  164.96

 164.96Total for Check Number 7752:

10154 FASTENAL COMPANY 12/15/20157753
CAFR254745 WTR-BLUE STAKE FLAGS  56.28

CAFR254745 VE SUPP-BRAKELEEN  6.49

CAFR254745 WTR-RECIP BLADE  17.50

CAFR254745 LLD-9V LI BATTERIES  44.29

CAFR254745 BLDG-NITRILE GLOVESMLRG  83.78

CAFR254745 BLDG-NITRILE GLOVES XL  21.63

CAFR254745 LLD-LOSMK GALLON MIX  7.36

CAFR254745 STRTC-LOSMK GALLON MIX  3.68

CAFR254745 WTR-GLOSS BLK PAINT  5.41

CAFR254745 STRTC-ORANGE VESTS  105.47

 351.89Total for Check Number 7753:

10170 FRESNO POLICE DEPARTMENT 12/15/20157754
RTC0001714 PD-OFF E ANTUNA POST PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS 12/21-23/15  341.00

RTC0001714 PD-OFF M ANTUNA POST PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS 12/21-23/15  341.00

RTC0001715 PD-OFF P MAGALLON POST PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS 12/28-30/15  341.00

RTC0001715 PD-OFF T CHAPMAN POST PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS 12/28-30/15  341.00

 1,364.00Total for Check Number 7754:

Page 2AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

16

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10452
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10106
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10107
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10114
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10118
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10141
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10151
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10154
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10170


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10175 G & K SERVICES, INC 12/15/20157755
12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES; BUILDING  6.00

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES; REC ADMIN  51.02

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES; UNIFORMS  27.27

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES; WATER OPERATIONS  69.48

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES; SEWER OPERATIONS  63.71

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES;  SOLID WASTE  2.83

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES;  STORM DRAIN  11.32

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES;  VEHICLES  25.33

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES;  LANDSCAPE & LIGHTING  32.07

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES;  STREETS-ARTICLE VIII  16.59

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES;  MEASURE C  65.79

12112015 VAR-UNIFORMS MATS SUPPLIES;  BLDG/PARKS OPERATIONS  1,840.54

 2,211.95Total for Check Number 7755:

10183 GRAFIX SHOPPE 12/15/20157756
104673 VE-7 GRAPIC KITS 2016 FORD SUVS  1,512.00

104673 VE-7 SETS OF ROOF NUMBERS  154.00

104673 VE-SHIPPING  60.00

 1,726.00Total for Check Number 7756:

10185 GRAINGER 12/15/20157757
9902667964 SWR-ADJ  HOOK SPANNER WRENCH  94.16

9902667972 SWR-ALLIGATOR CLIPS  14.92

9902667972 WTR-ALLIGATOR CLIPS  14.93

 124.01Total for Check Number 7757:

10199 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 12/15/20157758
10880000136986 CS-TARPS BIT SOCKET  146.35

10880001550573 CS-CEMENT MIXER RENTAL  201.43

10880001550573 CS-DEPOSIT REFUND -75.00

1088000178202 CS-ADHESIVE MORTAR CAULK GUN  21.65

10880009774498 CS-CLIMBING WALL RAILS  876.45

 1,170.88Total for Check Number 7758:

10205 INDEPENDENT STATIONERS 12/15/20157759
SO-000579980 ADM-BDRM COFFEE URNS-DESK CALENDAR  106.00

 106.00Total for Check Number 7759:

10609 KERMAN CULINARY ARTS CLUB 12/15/20157760
2015-06 REC-BREAKFAST WITH SANTA  136.00

 136.00Total for Check Number 7760:

10239 KERWEST NEWSPAPERS 12/15/20157761
40636 CC-2ND PUB ORD 12/05/06 SUMMARY  153.00

 153.00Total for Check Number 7761:

10252 LITHIA FORD OF FRESNO 12/15/20157762
1185127 PD REP-REAR AXLE, BEARING SEAL #1470  351.08

1185905 PD REP-COOLING FAN RELAY STOCK  423.14

 774.22Total for Check Number 7762:

10963 LYDIA MADRUGA 12/15/20157763
12142015 WTR-PARADE CANDY CANES  7.00

Page 3AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

17

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10175
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10183
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10185
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10199
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10205
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10609
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10239
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10252
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10963


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

12142015 WTR-DECORATIONS FOR TREE ON FLOAT  54.11

12142015 WTR-CUP HOOKS FOR FLOAT LIGHTS  2.91

12142015 WTR-RIBBON/WRAPPING PAPER FOR FLOAT  10.56

12142015 WTR-EXTENSION CORD FOR FLOAT  8.97

12142015 WTR-SWITCH FOR TREE  5.97

 89.52Total for Check Number 7763:

10259 MES VISION 12/15/20157764
153423088101 HR-JAN VISION PREMIUM  685.97

 685.97Total for Check Number 7764:

10261 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL, INC 12/15/20157765
11302015 SWA-NOVEMBER SW CHARGES  89,489.88

11302015 SWA-CITY PORTION FOR NOVEMBER 2015 -17,897.98

11302015 SWA-ROLL OFF/FRANCHISE FEES -445.60

 71,146.30Total for Check Number 7765:

10265 MONTOY LAW CORPORATION 12/15/20157766
11302015 ADM-NOVEMBER LEGAL SERVICES  3,358.00

 3,358.00Total for Check Number 7766:

10286 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC 12/15/20157767
12102015 PD REP-SUPPLIES 5 INV <$50  83.78

3921-243083 VE REP-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  21.61

3921-244767 PD REP-WHEEL WEIGHTS  26.79

3921-244767 VE REP-WHEEL WEIGHTS  26.79

3921-244864 PD REP-WHEEL WEIGHTS  18.13

3921-244864 VE REP-WHEEL WEIGHTS  18.13

3921-245631 PD REP-CLUTCH ASSEMBLY #1401  90.95

3921-245772 PD REP-COMPRESSOR #1401  179.02

3921-246520 EQUIP-BATTERY FOR LOADER  106.27

3921-246520 VE REP-AIR FILTER  11.87

3921-246523 VE REP-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50 -2.89

 580.45Total for Check Number 7767:

10832 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIFORNIA12/15/20157768
61058553 CS-DRIVER PHYSICAL  87.50

6105943 CS-DRIVER PHYSICAL  87.50

 175.00Total for Check Number 7768:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 12/15/20157769
807087068001 BPO-OFFICE SUPPLIES  43.05

807087068001 BPO-OFFICE SUPPLIES  23.79

807091554001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES IMAGINING UNIT FAX MACHINE  62.76

807091735001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES SCANNED RED STAMP  10.89

 140.49Total for Check Number 7769:

10285 ONTRAC 12/15/20157770
8329926 BPO-PLAN CHECK OVERNIGHT DELIVERY FEES  68.21

 68.21Total for Check Number 7770:

10289 P.G.& E. 12/15/20157771
3920400666-0 STRT-MONTHLY UTILITY SERVICES 10/29/15-11/30/15  3,924.39

4055166878-9 LLD-MONTHLY UTILITY SERVICES 10/28/15-11/29/15  1,450.65

Page 4AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

18

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10259
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10261
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10265
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10286
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10832
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10285
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10289


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

4055166878-9 LLD-INSTALLMENT LOAN LED  1,207.83

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SERVICES  15,893.33

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SERVICES  144.09

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SERVICES  19.71

5467738309-0 WTR/SWR/SD-MONTHLY UTILITY SERVICES  73.98

5939626163-5 VE-MONTHLY UTILITY SERVICES  429.22

 23,143.20Total for Check Number 7771:

10684 PETER MAGALLON 12/15/20157772
12102015 PD-3 COMMUTER LUNCHES PERISHABLE SKILLS CLASS 12/28-30/15  24.00

 24.00Total for Check Number 7772:

10964 OLIVIA PIMENTEL 12/15/20157773
030302242753469 BPO-PLANNING COMMISSION HOLIDAY GIFTS  60.52

 60.52Total for Check Number 7773:

10305 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER 12/15/20157774
800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  37.38

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  1.19

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  498.26

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  1.47

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  3.88

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  3.38

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  179.79

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  0.48

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  1.94

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  0.49

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  6.24

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  200.95

800090900159464 VAR-POSTAGE FOR METER INV #8000909001594642  69.03

 1,004.48Total for Check Number 7774:

10596 RED WING SHOE STORE 12/15/20157775
4090000011384 PW-VAR SAFETY BOOTS  100.00

4090000011384 PW-VAR SAFETY BOOTS  100.00

4090000011384 PW-VAR SAFETY BOOTS  85.16

 285.16Total for Check Number 7775:

10337 SLUMBERGER LUMBER 12/15/20157776
12112015 CS-SUPPLIES/KATIES PARK 8 INV <$50  105.64

12112015 PARKS-SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  17.64

B266369 STRTC-REBAR FOR CHRISTMAS TREE  12.98

B267463 WTR-HAMMER BIT  10.81

B267833 WTR CON-TOOLS PISTOL NOZZLES 100  274.33

B268058 CS-ELECTRICAL WIRE/KATIES PARK  90.90

B268225 PD REP-KEY #1401  3.22

B268358 SWR-FILTER LOCKBACK KNIFE  36.76

C164999 SWR-CONDUIT COUPLER PVC ELBOW  12.20

C165227 SWR-125 FISH TAPE  64.92

C165650 CS-ABS CAPS/KATIES PARK  55.06

C166032 STRTC-HALIDE BULBS FOR COBBLESTONE  214.22

 898.68Total for Check Number 7776:

10338 SMITH AUTO 12/15/20157777
04IN000112 PD MAINT-STOCK OIL FILTERS PD CARS  3.70

Page 5AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

19

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10684
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10964
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10305
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10596
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10337
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10338


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

04IN000113 PD MAINT-STOCK OIL FILTERS PD CARS  41.07

04IN000118 PD REP-COMPRESSOR #1401  234.70

04IN000118 PD REP-COMPRESSOR #1401-PART RETURNED -234.70

04IN000424 SWR-HEX BIT  16.22

315775 SWR-PARTS FOR MAG METER WWTP  45.43

316577 SWR-PARTS FOR MAG METER WWTP  55.89

 162.31Total for Check Number 7777:

10703 STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD12/15/20157778
S1601089 PW-DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPLE PMT  82,500.00

 82,500.00Total for Check Number 7778:

10754 SUPPLYWORKS 12/15/20157779
5155921-00 CTC-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES  603.94

 603.94Total for Check Number 7779:

10644 US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 12/15/20157780
293274338 BPO-LANIER/MP C3503 COPIER LEASE  149.35

 149.35Total for Check Number 7780:

10391 VALLEY FARM SUPPLY STORES 12/15/20157781
12102015 SWR-SUPPLIES 11 INV <$50  204.10

12102015 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 3 INV <$50  16.67

12102015 WTR-SUPPLIES 11 INV <$50  201.92

12102015 LLD-SUPPLIES 3 INV <$50  42.20

12102015 PARKS-SUPPLIES 3 INV <$50  51.22

OFF1K107023 WTR-RCV PIN, BALL MOUNT  32.03

OFF1K107023 SWR-RCV PIN, BALL MOUNT  32.02

OFF1K107332 VE SUPPL-BELTS FOR EDGERS  64.87

 645.03Total for Check Number 7781:

10526 WALTER KING 12/15/20157782
12082015 SWR-WWTP ENERGY EVALUATION  1,000.00

 1,000.00Total for Check Number 7782:

10406 WEST HILLS OIL, INC 12/15/20157783
229287 VE SUPPL-5/20 BLEND MOTOR OIL  935.36

49744 VE-FUEL NOV 16-30  3,069.18

49744 VE-B ARRENDONDO TRANSPORT  108.05

 4,112.59Total for Check Number 7783:

10412 XEROX CORPORATION 12/15/20157784
082412764 WTR-COPIER LEASE AGREEMENT NOV 15  83.31

082412764 SWR-COPIER LEASE AGREEMENT NOV 15  83.31

082491379 CS-REC DEPT COPIER  345.09

 511.71Total for Check Number 7784:

10413 YAMABE & HORN ENGINEERING 12/15/20157785
34441 VAR-GOLDENROD RAILROAD CROSSING  330.00

34442 VAR-WHITESBRIDGE & VINELAND TRAFFIC SIGNAL CMAQ  3,347.50

34443 VAR-GENERAL ENGINEERING  420.00

34444 VAR-MVD EXPANSION REVIEW  210.00

34445 VAR-MEDIAN TRANSITION PLAN  2,470.00

34446 VAR-VINELAND AVE WIDENING  2,910.00

Page 6AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

20

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10703
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10754
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10644
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10391
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10526
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10406
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10412
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10413


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

34447 VAR-UPRR PEDESTRIAN & BICYCLE TRAIL  3,785.00

34448 VAR-PROP 84 WATER METER PROJECT  3,982.50

34449 VAR-CDBG KATEYS KIDS PARK  2,480.00

34450 VAR-CHROMIUM 6 MCL SUPPORT  708.75

34451 VAR-CALIFORNIA AVE RECON-LOCAL  3,237.50

34452 VAR-TPM 14-01 AVILA  210.00

34453 VAR-SPR 14-03 KERMAN CROSSINGS PHASE II  1,522.50

34454 VAR-SR2S PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS  10,375.75

34455 VAR-CALIFORNIA AVE SIDEWALK-DEL NORTE & 1ST  1,965.00

34456 VAR-GROUNDWATER MGMNT ENG SUPPORT  420.00

34457 VAR-SPR 15-03 VALLEY HEALTH PARKING LOT ADDITION  105.00

34458 VAR-TREVINO & CORNELIUZ UTILITY AGREEMENTS  525.00

34459 VAR-MADERA HIGH VISIBILITY CROSSWALKS PHASE 1  660.00

34460 VAR-2015 KERMAN COG APPS  322.50

 39,987.00Total for Check Number 7785:

 248,829.42Total for 12/15/2015:

10147 Employment Development Department 12/22/2015ACH
12232015 C PR TAX DEPOSIT 12/23/15 SIT PAYABLE=PIT AMOUNT  3,880.36

12232015 C PR TAX DEPOSIT 12/23/15 SDI PAYABLE=SDI AMOUNT  1,194.08

 5,074.44Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10147:

10517 Federal Taxes-Payroll 12/22/2015ACH
12/25/2015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT 12/25/15 FIT PAYABLE=TAX WITHHOLDING  14,220.75

12/25/2015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT 12/25/15 FICA PAYABLE=SOCIAL SECURITY  17,516.28

12/25/2015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT 12/25/15 FICA MED PAYABLE=MEDICARE  4,096.56

 35,833.59Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10517:

10518 Kerman Police Officers Assn. 12/22/2015ACH
12232015 C MEMBERSHIP DUES 12/23/15  648.12

 648.12Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10518:

10519 Kerman Municipal Employees Assn. 12/22/2015ACH
12232015 C MEMBERSHIP DUES 12/23/15  165.00

 165.00Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10519:

10520 ICMA-RC 12/22/2015ACH
12/23/15 C DEFERRED COMP 12/23/15  3,294.40

12/23/15 C LOAN PAYMENTS  1,388.86

12/23/15 C LOAN FEES -20.15

 4,663.11Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10520:

10522 CalPERS 12/22/2015ACH
12232015 C EMPLOYER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS  10,480.74

12232015 EMPLOYEE PAID CONTRIBUTIONS  8,733.53

12232015 ROUNDING ADJ  0.01

 19,214.28Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10522:

10616 AAA QUALITY SERVICES, INC. 12/22/20157786
00231189 CS-FENCE RENTAL KATEYS KIDS PARK  81.17

 81.17Total for Check Number 7786:

Page 7AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

21

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10147
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10517
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10518
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10519
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10522
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10616


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10814 ACCELA INC #774375 12/22/20157787
INV32163 FIN-MONTHLY WEB PAYMENTS OCTOBER 2015  357.00

 357.00Total for Check Number 7787:

10013 ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS 12/22/20157788
INV197849 PD-NIK KITS METH 3  75.30

 75.30Total for Check Number 7788:

10014 ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS, INC 12/22/20157789
12162015 HR-JAN EMPLOYER FLEX PLAN  10,400.00

18916 HR-JAN DENTAL CLAIMS FUNDING  4,395.73

31545 HR-JAN SEC PLAN ADMIN  90.00

86427 HR-JAN BLUE SHIELD PLAN ADMIN  795.00

 15,680.73Total for Check Number 7789:

10019 AFLAC 12/22/20157790
109456 HR-DEC EMPLOYEE VOLUNTARY INSUR  184.56

 184.56Total for Check Number 7790:

10574 AGRONATURAL 12/22/20157791
780 STRTC-QUANTUM LIGHT/TREE FERTILIZER  584.42

 584.42Total for Check Number 7791:

10923 AMBER CHEMICAL INC 12/22/20157792
0333178-IN WTR-16-15 GAL CARBOYS CHRLORINE  720.00

0333178-IN WTR-CARBOYS DEPOSIT  320.00

0333178-IN WTR-TAX  59.22

 1,099.22Total for Check Number 7792:

10035 AQUA NATURAL SOLUTIONS 12/22/20157793
2377 SWR-MICROBE LIFT/SLUDGE AWAY  491.72

 491.72Total for Check Number 7793:

10039 AT&T 12/22/20157794
12222015 PD-T-1 LINE 12/10/15-1/9/16  275.67

 275.67Total for Check Number 7794:

10054 BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA 12/22/20157795
153510003971 HR-JAN MEDICAL COVERAGE  27,821.40

153510003971 HR-JAN COBRA COVERAGE  288.61

 28,110.01Total for Check Number 7795:

10061 BSK ASSOCIATES 12/22/20157796
A525291 WTR-QTRLY TESTING  844.00

 844.00Total for Check Number 7796:

10965 BUSH CONSTRUCTION 12/22/20157797
12182015 WTR-REFUND ON WATER METER RENTAL  940.00

 940.00Total for Check Number 7797:

10617 C.A. REDING CO., INC. 12/22/20157798
361550 PD-NOV BILLING FOR COPIES 11/13/15-12/12/15  46.18

Page 8AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

22

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10814
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10013
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10014
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10019
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10574
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10923
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10035
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10039
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10054
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10061
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10965
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10617


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 46.18Total for Check Number 7798:

10092 CENTRAL VALLEY TOXICOLOGY 12/22/20157799
244102A PD-BLOOD TEST 15-2093  75.00

245014 PD-BLOOD TEST 15-2197  189.00

245015 PD-BLOOD TEST 15-2137  78.00

 342.00Total for Check Number 7799:

10968 CHRISTMAS DESIGNER.COM 12/22/20157800
0041245 CS-CHRISTMAS ORNAMENTS-TREE LIGHTING CEREMONY  1,351.68

 1,351.68Total for Check Number 7800:

10452 CITY OF FRESNO WMD 12/22/20157801
K111815 WTR-LAB ANALYSIS  30.00

K111815 SWR-LAB ANALYSIS  76.00

 106.00Total for Check Number 7801:

10103 COLONIAL LIFE 12/22/20157802
342020512232015 HR-DEC EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTION  515.60

 515.60Total for Check Number 7802:

10104 COMCAST 12/22/20157803
815550021047646 TECH-TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 12/14/15-1/13/16  168.92

 168.92Total for Check Number 7803:

10107 CONSOLIDATED ELECTRICAL DISTRB 12/22/20157804
2574-755198 CS-LIGHT BULB REPLACEMENT  58.44

 58.44Total for Check Number 7804:

10826 CROWN SERVICES CO 12/22/20157805
691106 CS-PORTA POTTIES/SINKS  188.64

 188.64Total for Check Number 7805:

10115 CSJVRMA 12/22/20157806
RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR WORKERS COMP DEPOSIT  59,695.00

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  15,607.80

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  5,202.60

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  3,988.66

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  1,734.20

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  693.68

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  4,855.76

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  520.26

RMA-2016-0142 VAR-3RD QTR LIAB DEP & DIF IN COND  2,081.04

 94,379.00Total for Check Number 7806:

10128 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 12/22/20157807
136496 PD-NOV LIVE SCAN PRINTS  113.00

136496 PD-NOV LIVE SCAN PRINTS J GOLDEN LT  51.00

139614 PD-NOV 2015 4 BLOOD ALCOHOL ANALYSIS  140.00

 304.00Total for Check Number 7807:

10618 DISCOVERY DOOR DISTRIBUTION 12/22/20157808

Page 9AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

23

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10092
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10968
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10452
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10103
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10104
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10107
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10826
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10115
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10128
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10618


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

SO-3224 BLDG-KEYS  79.33

 79.33Total for Check Number 7808:

10654 DIVINE DESSERTS 12/22/20157809
390131 CC-DEC COUNCIL MEETING  15.00

 15.00Total for Check Number 7809:

10154 FASTENAL COMPANY 12/22/20157810
CAFR254887 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 2 LINE ITEMS <$50  30.26

CAFR254887 STRTC-LG NITRILE GLOVES  83.78

CAFR254887 PARKS-SUPPLIES 2 LINE ITEMS <$50  5.81

CAFR254887 STRTC-L/XL ORANGE VESTS  63.29

CAFR254887 LLD-PARTICLE RESPIRATORS  11.17

 194.31Total for Check Number 7810:

10572 FRESNO CITY COLLEGE 12/22/20157811
11720082-87 PD-REGISTRATION FOR INTERVIEW & INTERROGATION  133.00

 133.00Total for Check Number 7811:

10162 FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER 12/22/20157812
SO 13202 PD-NOV PRISONER PROCESSING SERVICE  48.00

 48.00Total for Check Number 7812:

10185 GRAINGER 12/22/20157813
9908870166 CS-VACUUM MASTER REBUILD KIT-LIONS PARK  36.01

9908870174 CS-TOILET SPUD FULL OPEN-LIONS PARK  10.95

 46.96Total for Check Number 7813:

10966 SARA HEAUNGPASEUD 12/22/20157814
00034902 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND SCOUT HUT 10/17/15  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 7814:

10205 INDEPENDENT STATIONERS 12/22/20157815
IN-000578612 CS-COFFEE CUPS  27.27

IN-000578614 CS-COFFEE CUPS  27.27

 54.54Total for Check Number 7815:

10212 INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR 12/22/20157816
M16-C105884 PD-ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP  50.00

 50.00Total for Check Number 7816:

10841 JENKINS CONCRETE PUMPING CO 12/22/20157817
59070 CS-CONCRETE PUMP FOR SHELTER PADS  321.00

 321.00Total for Check Number 7817:

10272 MUTUAL OF OMAHA 12/22/20157818
000453862133 HR-JAN LTD INS EMPLOYEE  428.35

000453862133 HR-JAN LTD INS EMPLOYER  428.35

000453862133 HR-JAN LIFE INSURANCE  386.97

000453862133 HR-JAN VOLUNTARY LIFE  1,142.74

 2,386.41Total for Check Number 7818:

Page 10AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

24

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10654
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10154
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10572
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10162
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10185
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10966
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10205
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10212
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10841
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10272


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 12/22/20157819
804440691-003 CS-PERMANENT MARKERS  2.31

808890580001 WTR-HP TONER-COLOR PRINTER  202.23

808890580001 SWR-HP TONER-COLOR PRINTER  202.22

810149743001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES; TONER SHARPIES PENS  188.39

810525851001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES; DESKTOP CALENDARS  31.17

810525908001 PD-OFFICE SUPPLIES; 3 HOLE PUNCH  26.18

 652.50Total for Check Number 7819:

10457 OFFICEMAX INC. 12/22/20157820
563257 SWR-DIVIDERS  3.33

 3.33Total for Check Number 7820:

10289 P.G.& E. 12/22/20157821
6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 11/16/15-12/8/15  1,783.74

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 11/16/15-12/8/15  237.18

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 11/16/15-12/8/15  2,119.40

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 11/16/15-12/8/15  811.10

6206788690-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS 11/16/15-12/8/15  100.00

9081203718-3 CS-MONTHLY ELECTRICITY & GAS-KATEYS KIDS PARK 10/22/15-11/20/15  24.59

 5,076.01Total for Check Number 7821:

10969 PLAY & PARK STRUCTURES 12/22/20157822
PJI-0006611 CS-TRASH CAN POST  968.42

 968.42Total for Check Number 7822:

10319 RENO'S HARDWARE 12/22/20157823
0058121 PROTEUS-RETURN OF BOOTS -132.53

0058121 PROTEUS-RETURN OF BOOTS -243.18

0058453 PROTEUS-BOOTS 3 PR/WORKERS  143.43

0058931 WTR-WATER MAIN WRENCHES  131.59

058303 CS-SUPPLIES FOR KATEYS PARK  1.19

12212015 PARKS-SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  13.46

12212015 STRTC-SUPPLIES 10 INV <$50  150.58

12212015 SWR-SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  50.02

12212015 WTR-SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  12.14

12212015 CS-KATEYS PARK SUPPIES 3 INV <$50  20.16

12212015 PARKS-SUPPLIES 2 INV <$50  37.16

350 BLDG MAINT-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  23.41

539 LLD-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  2.84

636 VE SUPPL-SUPPLIES 1 INV <$50  27.92

847 STRTC-SUPPLIES FOR CHRISTMAS TREE  76.18

962 STRTC-SUPPLIES FOR CHRISTMAS TREE  54.38

 368.75Total for Check Number 7823:

10682 RJ HILL HOMES 12/22/20157824
15-RES-0124 BPO-C & D REFUND TRACT 5478/LOT 120 15674 W SAN JOAQUIN  620.00

15-RES-0125 BPO-C & D REFUND TRACT 5478/LOT 61 15679 W SAN JOAQUIN  528.25

15-RES-0145 BPO-C & D REFUND TRACT 5478/LOT 62 15681 W SAN JOAQUIN  511.00

 1,659.25Total for Check Number 7824:

10636 ROSA & HUGO SANCHEZ 12/22/20157825
013237-000 FIN-REFUND UB DEPOSIT 013237-000  10.38

 10.38Total for Check Number 7825:

Page 11AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

25

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10457
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10289
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10969
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10319
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10682
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10636


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10610 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL, INC SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY CHAPTER12/22/20157826
12222015 BPO-ICC SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY CHAPTER 2016 MEMBERSHIP  30.00

 30.00Total for Check Number 7826:

10337 SLUMBERGER LUMBER 12/22/20157827
12212015 CS-BUILDINGS-MAINT/REPAIR SUPPLIES ACCT #3116  303.14

12212015 CS-PARKS-MAINT/REPAIR SUPPLIES ACCT #3116  373.95

12212015 CS-COMM CTR-MAINT/REPAIR SUPPLIES ACCT #3116  21.07

12212015 CS-REC-MAINT/REPAIR SUPPLIES ACCT #3116  16.22

12212015 CS-YSB-MAINT/REPAIR SUPPLIES ACCT #3116  47.00

12212015 CS-YSB-MAINT/REPAIR SUPPLIES ACCT #3116  674.01

12212015 CS-KATEYS KIDS PARK ACCT #3116  133.80

B269673 PD-KEYS MADE FOR VEHICLE 472  6.45

 1,575.64Total for Check Number 7827:

10420 SPRINT 12/22/20157828
622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  24.73

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  24.73

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  181.36

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  32.97

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  24.73

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  53.58

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  148.39

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  90.68

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  82.44

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  28.85

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  35.04

622685312-169 VAR-MONTHLY CELLULAR SERVICES 11/12/15-12/11/15  46.24

 773.74Total for Check Number 7828:

10354 T & T PAVEMENT MARKINGS 12/22/20157829
2015970 STRTC-5 STOP SIGNS  200.22

 200.22Total for Check Number 7829:

10967 UNITED RENTALS 12/22/20157830
133073119-001 CS-FORKLIFT RENTAL KATEYS PARK  1,957.99

133073119-002 CS-FORKLIFT RENTAL CREDIT -342.71

 1,615.28Total for Check Number 7830:

10399 VETERINARY MEDICAL CENTER 12/22/20157831
212937 AAC-3 EUTHANASIA OF ANIMAL  58.40

 58.40Total for Check Number 7831:

 228,203.27Total for 12/22/2015:

10021 ALERT O LITE 12/29/20157832
0450066-IN STRTC-ASPHALT PATCH 60 LB BAGS #24  998.69

 998.69Total for Check Number 7832:

10923 AMBER CHEMICAL INC 12/29/20157833
0333437-IN WTR-190 GL BULK CHLORINE  431.82

Page 12AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

26

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10610
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10337
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10420
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10354
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10967
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10399
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10021
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10923


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 431.82Total for Check Number 7833:

10102 CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 12/29/20157834
51704 CLRK-KMO UPDATE/WEB DEC 2015  493.35

 493.35Total for Check Number 7834:

10114 CROWN SHORT LOAD CONCRETE 12/29/20157835
89075 CS-CONCRETE FOR KATEYS PARK  267.32

 267.32Total for Check Number 7835:

10151 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 12/29/20157836
552145 PARKS-RAINBIRD 3 WAY VALVES 2  35.90

 35.90Total for Check Number 7836:

10168 FRESNO NETWORKS 12/29/20157837
AT19630 TECH-MONTHLY TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT SERVICES 11/21/15-12/22/15  2,357.60

 2,357.60Total for Check Number 7837:

10514 ICAD INC. 12/29/20157838
12284 SWR-HMI PROGRAMMING 11/23/15  651.25

12285 SWR-HMI PROGRAMMING 11/25/15  125.00

12286 SWR-HMI PROGRAMMING 12/1/15  217.50

 993.75Total for Check Number 7838:

10239 KERWEST NEWSPAPERS 12/29/20157839
40690 BPO-PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 2/8/16  81.00

 81.00Total for Check Number 7839:

10970 STRICKLAND ENTERPRISES INC 12/29/20157840
12282015 WTR-REFUND ON WATER METER RENTAL  950.00

 950.00Total for Check Number 7840:

10401 WALLYS TIRE AND WHEEL 12/29/20157841
1-7656 VE EQUIP-TIRE FOR CASE TRACTOR  286.87

 286.87Total for Check Number 7841:

10406 WEST HILLS OIL, INC 12/29/20157842
49959 VE-FUEL DEC 1-15  3,317.07

 3,317.07Total for Check Number 7842:

10971 WESTERN HIGHWAY PRODUCTS 12/29/20157843
673771 STRT-MATTHEW AVE NEW STREET SIGN  187.41

 187.41Total for Check Number 7843:

 10,400.78Total for 12/29/2015:

Report Total (113 checks):  560,841.77

Page 13AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (12/29/2015  2:15 PM)

27

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10102
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10114
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10151
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10168
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10514
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10239
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10970
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10401
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10406
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10971


    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

 
MAYOR 

 
MAYOR PRO-TEM 

 

Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JANUARY 6, 2016 

 
To: 

 
Mayor and City Council 

From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Accepting the California Avenue Reconstruction Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution accepting the California Avenue Reconstruction Project and authorize the city 
engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The Contractor, Don Berry Construction, Inc. has completed the work required for the California Avenue 
Reconstruction Project. The project reconstructed California Avenue between Del Norte Avenue and Madera 
Avenue. The reconstruction of Manor Drive between California and B Street was also included. The City Public 
Works Inspector has inspected the improvements required by the project and all of the improvements have been 
completed. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The California Avenue Reconstruction Project is included in the City’s Capital Improvement Program. The project 
replaced the existing pavement section on 1) California Avenue from Del Norte Avenue to Madera Avenue and 2) 
Manor Drive from California Avenue to B Street in order to provide a smooth street surface, capable of supporting 
the typical vehicle loads on the streets. In addition, the project replaced existing concrete curb and gutter, sidewalks, 
valley gutters, and driveways that were damaged or deficient. New curb ramps were constructed at all intersections 
in compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations. The project also constructed curb bulbouts at 
the intersection of California Avenue and First Street to provide an enhanced crossing for pedestrians to access the 
master-planned pedestrian and bicycle path on the south side of California Avenue. Construction began on the 
project in mid-September and was completed in early December, within the specified contract time.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The total project cost was $777,000, including the additional cost of the reconstruction of Manor Drive. The City has 
budgeted $792,000 in Local Transportation Funds for the project. The project was completed $15,000 under budget, 
with no additional funds having to be added to the City’s budget for Manor Drive.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution  

28



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Acceptance of California Avenue Reconstruction Project 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ACCEPTING IMPROVEMENTS AND AUTHORIZING FILING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

FOR THE CALIFORNIA AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, Don Berry Construction, Inc. has completed the work for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project 
and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Public Works Inspector has inspected the improvements required by the City and all 
improvements required by the City have been completed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer recommends acceptance of the California Avenue Reconstruction Project and requests 
Council to authorize the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion for the project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY ACCEPTS the California Avenue 
Reconstruction Project and authorizes the City Engineer to record the Notice of Completion. 
 
 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th 
day of January, 2016, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
              
        Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 

29



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JANUARY 6, 2016 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 364 S. Goldenrod Avenue and 424 S. 

Goldenrod Avenue 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving agreements for utility service for Julian and Gloria Torres at 364 S. 
Goldenrod Avenue and Tony Martinez at 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City has received requests to connect to City utilities from two property owners located on the east side of 
Goldenrod Avenue, north of Kearney Boulevard. Julian and Gloria Torres own the property located at 364 S. 
Goldenrod Avenue and Tony Martinez owns the property located at 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue. Both properties 
consist of a single family residence served by a private well and septic system. The private well on each property 
has gone dry and the subject property owners would like to ensure they have reliable water service by connecting to 
City utilities. The property owners have requested to connect to City utilities and pay the required connection fees 
over a 10-year period.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
In order to ensure a reliable source of water, the owners have requested to connect to City utilities. The subject 
properties are located on the east side of Goldenrod Avenue, north of Kearney Boulevard, just outside of the City 
Limits, see Attachment ‘B’. The existing improvements to each property include a single family residence that is 
served by a well and septic system. The properties were provided with water and sewer services as part of the 
improvements completed along Goldenrod Avenue for the Goldenrod Elementary School.  
 
The Kerman Municipal Code (KMC) Section 13.04.100 allows for properties located outside of City Limits to connect 
to City utilities provided the property owners enter into a written agreement with the City for all utility services. 
Furthermore, KMC Section 13.08 requires the payment of fees for connection, either in full or on an installment 
basis. The owners will be required to pay the applicable development impact fees for connection to City utilities. The 
development impact fees were calculated using the length of developed property frontage and one residential unit. 
The total fees are $9,983. The owners have requested that the fees be collected on a monthly basis over a 10-year 
period. This alleviates the up-front fiscal impact to the property owner. Any future development on the property will 

30



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  
be subject to additional impact fees. In addition to the benefit provided to the property owner, the City benefits from 
the elimination of an unregulated groundwater supply source adjacent to the City’s boundaries. 
 
Due to the properties being located outside of the City Limits, the City was required to obtain authorization from 
LAFCo to connect the properties to City utilities. Staff prepared and submitted the required application and paid the 
required application fee to obtain LAFCo authorization. In order to reduce the burden of costs on the property 
owners, the City applied for authorization to connect all six properties on the east side of Goldenrod Avenue so that 
the application costs could be split amongst them. The fair share cost for each property is $294. 
 
Connection to the City’s water system is desired immediately. However, connection to the City’s sewer system is not 
urgent and the property owners may be allowed 2 years from the date of the Utility Service Agreement to connect to 
the sewer system. Impact fee payments for both water and sewer will begin with the first monthly billing for water 
service.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The water service will be metered and the owners will be required to pay monthly water and sewer charges based 
on current rates. The applicable development impact fees will be collected over a 10-year period. The total impact 
fees to be collected are $9,983, or $83.19 per month for the 10-year term. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
B. Utility Service Map 

 
 
  

31



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING AGREEMENTS  
FOR UTILITY SERVICE FOR JULIAN AND GLORIA TORRES AT 364 S. GOLDENROD AVENUE AND  

TONY MARTINEZ JR. AT 424 S. GOLDENROD AVENUE 
 

WHEREAS, Julian and Gloria Torres are the owners of real property located at 364 S. Goldenrod Avenue, in 
the County of Fresno; and 

WHEREAS, Tony Martinez Jr. is the owner of real property located at 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue, in the 
County of Fresno; and 

WHEREAS, the Torres and Martinez properties each contains a single family residence, water well and 
septic system; and 

WHEREAS, sewer and water mains currently exist across the frontage of the subject property in Goldenrod 
Avenue and water and sewer services have been previously installed for the Torres and Martinez properties; and  

WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Torres property to connect 
to the sewer and water system are $9,983; and 

WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Martinez property to 
connect to the sewer and water system are $9,983; and 

WHEREAS, Julian and Gloria Torres and Tony Martinez Jr. have each made application to the City of 
Kerman for water and sewer service; and  

WHEREAS, Section 13.08 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires payment of connection charges, and 
Section 13.04.100 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires an Agreement for Utility Service between the property 
owner and the City before utility service can be provided.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Agreement for Utility Service for Julian and Gloria Torres at 364 S. Goldenrod Avenue is hereby 
approved. 

32



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

2. The Agreement for Utility Service for Tony Martinez Jr. at 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue is hereby 
approved. 

3. The City Manager is authorized to sign the City’s form of Agreement for Utility Service, as shown in 
Exhibit 1, on behalf of the City. 

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th 
day of January, 2016, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 
             
        Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

33



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  
 

Exhibit 1 

 

34



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

37



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

38



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

 

39



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 11 
Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

40



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

 

  
 MAYOR 

 
MAYOR PRO-TEM 

 

 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JANUARY 6, 2016 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: John Kunkel, City Manager 
Subject: Renewal of Memorandum of Understanding with Fresno County Rural Transit Agency for Public 

Transit Safety and Security Services. 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council approve the renewal of the Memorandum of Understanding with the Fresno County Rural Transit Agency for 
Public Transit and Security Services and authorize the city manager to execute the agreement. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
On November 19, 2014, the City Council approved a Memorandum of Understanding with the Fresno County Rural 
Transit Agency, (FCRTA), to provide weekly safety checks to Westside Transit and Kerman Transit buses. These 
safety checks were performed by the Kerman Police Department. These safety checks are required by the Federal 
Transit Administration. The inspection involves a uniformed officer boarding a bus during its stop in Kerman and 
ensuring the safety of the driver and passengers. The inspections are done randomly every week. The FCRTA will 
reimburse the Kerman Police Department $4,000 for providing the inspection service. (Please note the agreement is 
from 7/01/2015-6/30/2016. The City has just received the renewal). (MOU is attached to this staff report). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The FCRTA will pay the Kerman Police Department $4,000 for Fiscal Year 2015-16 to conduct the safety 
inspections outlined above. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 

 
Attachment 

 
 A. Memorandum of Understanding  

41



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency MOU Renewal 
  
 

 
Attachment ‘A’ 

42



43



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JANUARY 6, 2016 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving Addendum to Adopted Negative Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch Park 

Water Service Project (SCH #2013121030) 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Addendum to Adopted Negative Declaration for the Double L 
Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project (SCH #2013121030) and authorize staff to file the Notice of 
Determination. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City has applied for Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF) Grant funding for the installation of 
the required infrastructure to provide water service to the Double L Mobile Ranch Park and for the construction of 
Well No. 18. In order for the City to receive funding, the projects must receive environmental clearance from the 
State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW). The final requirement to receive full 
environmental clearance is to combine the two projects from an environmental perspective, via an addendum to the 
adopted environmental document. City Staff has prepared the required Addendum in conformance with California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines and the Addendum has been circulated for public review. Council 
must approve the Addendum so that the Notice of Determination can be filed with the County Clerk and submitted to 
DDW for environmental clearance. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
In 2013, the City was approached by the California Department of Public Health (CDPH), Drinking Water Division, 
regarding the consolidation of the Double L Mobile Ranch Park water system into the City’s water system. The 
Double L Mobile Ranch Park (Double L) is a small residential community located at the northeast corner of the 
intersection of Floyd Avenue and Church Avenue.  The community consists of 37 residences and has a population 
of approximately 80 residents.  The residents are currently provided water service by the Double L Mobile Ranch 
Park water system.  The water system has been issued a Compliance Order by the California Department of Public 
Health (CDPH) due to ongoing violations of the Uranium Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL).   
 
The City expressed willingness to provide service to Double L, but would require the development of Well No. 18 in 
order to continue to provide reliable service with the additional demand created by the consolidation of Double L. 

44



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  
CDPH informed the City that consolidation of the Double L system would allow the City to apply for SDWSRF Grant 
funding, on behalf of Double L, for both the development of Well No. 18 and the necessary water distribution 
infrastructure to serve Double L. The City submitted an application for SDWSRF Grant funding on behalf of Double L 
in December 2013. It should be noted that since the City initiated these projects in 2013, the SDWSRF Program has 
been transferred from the CDPH to the State Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW).  
 
Due to the City’s concerns regarding uncertainty with SDWSRF Grant funding award, the City decided to prepare 
separate negative declarations to satisfy CEQA requirements. The City did not want to tie the projects together in 
case no funding was received and Well No. 18 was completed separately. If no SDWSRF Grant funding was 
received, the City would not be responsible for consolidating the Double L water system at the City’s expense. The 
Negative Declaration for the New Well Site No. 18 (SCH #2013061036) was adopted by the City Council on August 
7, 2013. The Negative Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project (SCH #2013121030) 
was adopted by the City Council on January 15, 2014.   
 
However, in order to complete the environmental review process for SDWSRF Grant funding, it has become 
necessary to combine the two projects into one from an environmental perspective. Staff has prepared an 
Addendum, in conformance with CEQA guidelines, to combine the two projects. The Addendum also includes 
revisions to the biological assessments, as requested by DDW. The revisions to the assessments do not result in a 
change in the anticipated level of environmental impact discussed in the adopted negative declarations. As required 
by DDW, the Addendum was submitted to the State Clearinghouse for a fifteen (15) day public review period. The 
public review period began on December 9, 2015 and ended December 24, 2015. No comments were received 
within the specified review period. A Vicinity Map showing the project limits for both components is included in the 
Addendum.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The total estimated cost for the infrastructure to provide water service to the Double L Mobile Ranch Park and to 
construct Well No. 18 is $3.18 million. The City has applied for funding for the full amount of the project cost.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
 

 
 
  

45



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING THE ADDENDUM TO ADOPTED NEGATIVE DECLARATION  

FOR THE DOUBLE L MOBILE RANCH PARK WATER SERVICE PROJECT (SCH #2013121030) 
 
WHEREAS, City Council approved the Negative Declaration for the New Well Site No. 18 (SCH #2013061036) on 

August 7, 2013; and, 
WHEREAS, City Council approved the Negative Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service 

Project (SCH #2013121030) on January 15, 2014; and, 
WHEREAS, the City has applied for Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SDWSRF) Grant funding for the 

Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project and the New Well Site No. 18; and, 
WHEREAS, the State of California Water Resources Control Board, Division of Drinking Water (DDW), is the agency 

responsible for administering SDWSRF funding; and, 
WHEREAS, the DDW has requested the City to combine the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project and 

the New Well Site No. 18 environmental documents; and, 
WHEREAS, the City has prepared an Addendum to the Adopted Negative Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch 

Park Water Service Project to combine the two projects; and, 
WHEREAS, the Addendum to Adopted Negative Declaration was submitted to the State of California Clearinghouse for 

a 15-day public review period, at the request of DDW, beginning on December 9, 2015 and ending on December 24, 2015; and, 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the 15-day public review comment period, the City of Kerman, acting as the lead 

agency, may approve the Addendum to the Adopted Negative Declaration and file a Notice of Determination with the State 
Clearinghouse and County Clerk after considering and addressing comments received from Federal, State, and Local agencies 
as well as other organizations and individuals pursuant to CEQA Guidelines; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council is required to conduct its own independent review and approve the Addendum to the 
Adopted Negative Declaration and direct staff to file a Notice of Determination with the State Clearinghouse and County Clerk. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY FINDS AS FOLLOWS:  
 

1. The City Council has independently reviewed the Addendum to Adopted Negative Declaration and any comments 
received during the public review process and exercised the Council's independent judgment in considering the 
Addendum to the Adopted Negative Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project; and, 

2. The City Council finds, on the basis of the whole record before it that there is no substantial evidence that the project 
will have a significant effect on the environment and the Addendum to Adopted Negative Declaration reflects the 
Council's independent judgment and analysis and the Council hereby approves the Addendum to Negative Declaration 
and designates the Planning Department and the Planning Director as the location and custodian of the documents 
which constitute the record of proceedings upon which the Council's decision is based. 

46



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

 
3. The City Clerk and other City Staff are hereby authorized and directed to take all necessary actions required under 

CEQA and other applicable law to file a Notice of Determination with the State Clearinghouse and Fresno County 
Clerk's office. 

 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 6th 
day of January, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
                                                                                  
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

47



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

 
Exhibit 1 

 

48



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

49



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

50



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

51



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

52



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

53



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

54



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

55



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

56



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

57



City Council Staff Report   Page 15 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

58



City Council Staff Report   Page 16 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

59



City Council Staff Report   Page 17 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

60



City Council Staff Report   Page 18 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

61



City Council Staff Report   Page 19 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

62



City Council Staff Report   Page 20 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

63



City Council Staff Report   Page 21 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

64



City Council Staff Report   Page 22 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

65



City Council Staff Report   Page 23 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

66



City Council Staff Report   Page 24 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

67



City Council Staff Report   Page 25 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

68



City Council Staff Report   Page 26 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

69



City Council Staff Report   Page 27 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

70



City Council Staff Report   Page 28 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

71



City Council Staff Report   Page 29 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 30 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

73



City Council Staff Report   Page 31 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

74



City Council Staff Report   Page 32 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

75



City Council Staff Report   Page 33 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

76



City Council Staff Report   Page 34 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

77



City Council Staff Report   Page 35 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

78



City Council Staff Report   Page 36 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

79



City Council Staff Report   Page 37 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

80



City Council Staff Report   Page 38 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

81



City Council Staff Report   Page 39 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

82



City Council Staff Report   Page 40 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

83



City Council Staff Report   Page 41 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

84



City Council Staff Report   Page 42 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

85



City Council Staff Report   Page 43 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

86



City Council Staff Report   Page 44 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

87



City Council Staff Report   Page 45 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

88



City Council Staff Report   Page 46 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

89



City Council Staff Report   Page 47 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

90



City Council Staff Report   Page 48 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

91



City Council Staff Report   Page 49 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

92



City Council Staff Report   Page 50 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

93



City Council Staff Report   Page 51 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

94



City Council Staff Report   Page 52 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

95



City Council Staff Report   Page 53 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

96



City Council Staff Report   Page 54 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

97



City Council Staff Report   Page 55 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

98



City Council Staff Report   Page 56 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

99



City Council Staff Report   Page 57 of 57 
Double L CEQA Addendum 
  

 

100



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JANUARY 6, 2016 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution and Recommendation for Submittal of Applications for Federal Transportation Funds 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council approve the submission of applications for Federal Transportation Funding to the Fresno Council of 
Governments and adopt resolution supporting and implementing AB 1012 “Timely Use of Funding”. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The Fresno Council of Governments (COG) has called for applications for Federally-funded transportation projects. 
Funding is available from the Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) and Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality Improvement (CMAQ) Program. Staff has developed a list of projects to submit as candidate projects.   
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The Fresno Council of Governments administers Federal funding for local transportation projects. Funding is 
available from two programs, as follow: 
 

1. RSTP – Regional Surface Transportation Program: Typical roadway rehabilitation projects. 
2. CMAQ – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program: Projects that reduce traffic 

congestion and air pollution (i.e. transit improvements, clean fuel technology, traffic signals, 
pedestrian/bicycle facilities, etc.) 

 
Within each program, the funds are divided into two categories, “Lifeline” and “Regional Bid”. The amount of funds 
allocated for “Lifeline” projects is based on population. The City’s share of RSTP Lifeline funds is $198,600 and 
share of CMAQ Lifeline funds is $117,000. The “Regional Bid” projects will divide $8.96 million of RSTP funds and 
$18.46 million of CMAQ funds amongst the member agencies of COG, based on competitive scoring of applications 
submitted by member agencies. 
 
COG has called for CMAQ Regional Bid project applications to be submitted by January 22, 2016 and RSTP 
Regional Bid project applications to be submitted by February 5, 2016. A Council resolution supporting the timely 
use of funds is required. RSTP projects are required to be on Collector and Arterial streets and local streets are not 

101



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
2015 RSTP & CMAQ Applications 
  
eligible. CMAQ funds may be used for any transportation project within the local agency’s jurisdiction as long as 
there is a reduction in pollution which results from the project. 
 
Staff has developed a list of projects to submit as candidate projects. Where more than one project is submitted for 
a particular category, then the City must rank the projects in order of priority. The proposed projects are listed in 
order of proposed priority for each program, with estimated costs shown. Attachment ‘B’ and ‘C’ show the locations 
and proposed limits of the various RSTP and CMAQ projects, respectively.  
 
RSTP “Regional Bid” – Street Rehabilitation 
 

1. Kearney Boulevard – Siskiyou Avenue to Del Norte Avenue - $868,000  
This project would consist of a grind and overlay of the existing pavement to address the deteriorated 
pavement surface. According to the City’s Pavement Management Program, the pavement condition along 
this segment of Kearney Boulevard is primarily poor to very poor. Portions of the roadway would be fully 
reconstructed to address issues with the pavement structural section. The project would also include the 
replacement of damaged sections of curb and gutter, sidewalk, valley gutters, and driveway approaches. 
Handicap accessible ramps would be constructed at all street intersections where they do not exist or are 
non-compliant with ADA requirements. New medians with landscaping would be constructed between Park 
Avenue and Del Norte Avenue, consistent with the adjacent segments of Kearney Boulevard.  

 
2. Vineland Avenue – Whitesbridge Road to 660’ South of Whitesbridge Road - $385,000  
 This project would consist of widening Vineland Avenue to ultimate width. The project would include the 

construction of curb and gutter, sidewalk, drive approaches, and paving for bike and parking lanes. The 
project would require the acquisition of right-of-way from two properties on the east side of Vineland Avenue.  

 
CMAQ “Regional Bid” – Congestion Relief and Air Quality 
 

1. California Avenue Sidewalk – First Street to Madera Avenue - $210,000 
 This project would consist of the construction of a 10 foot wide sidewalk along the south side of California 
Avenue from First Street to Madera Avenue for shared use by bicyclists and pedestrians. The project would 
include the construction of a rest area along the route with a park bench, trash receptacle, lighting, and any 
other desired amenities. This project would be consistent with the Union Pacific Railroad/California Avenue 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Route Master Plan previously adopted by Council. The City has already allocated 
CMAQ funds for the construction of a bicycle and pedestrian trail along the Union Pacific Railroad from 
Siskiyou Avenue to Park Avenue and construction of a 10 foot wide sidewalk along the south side of 
California Avenue from Del Norte Avenue to First Street.  
 

2. Sidewalk Gap Closure Project - $216,000 
 This project would consist of the construction of sidewalks at three locations where they do not presently 
exist. The first location (#2A) is along Stanislaus Avenue between the City’s storm drainage basin and 
Goldenrod Elementary School. The construction of sidewalks at this location is included in the conditions of 
approval for Tract 5832 and 5921, located between Stanislaus Avenue and Kearney Boulevard. However, 
the City has not seen any progress towards these tracts being constructed in the last two years. This route is 
a primary access route between the residential neighborhoods along Stanislaus Avenue and Goldenrod 
Elementary School. The second location (#2B) is along the south side of Kearney Boulevard between 
Pacheco Drive and Vineland Avenue. In addition to new sidewalk, the project would construct mountable 
curb and gutter along the street for improved drainage. The third location (#2C) is along the east side of First 

102



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
2015 RSTP & CMAQ Applications 
  

Street from Whitesbridge Road to the Kerman Plaza Apartments. There is no sidewalk along the First Street 
frontage of the undeveloped commercial property on the east side of First Street. 
 

RSTP and CMAQ “Lifeline” Projects 
 
The applications for Lifeline projects are not due until April 2016, so that cities can learn whether or not any of their 
competitive applications are successful before determining what to do with their Lifeline funds. Staff recommends 
that the City’s Lifeline funds be committed to increase the City’s matching funds on the proposed Regional Bid 
projects, providing a higher chance of securing funding for these larger projects. If the City’s Regional Bid 
applications are unsuccessful in obtaining funding, Staff anticipates bringing back a separate set of projects for 
proposed Lifeline funding in early Spring.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
All of the Federally-funded transportation projects require a local match of 11.47% from local Gas Tax, Measure C, 
or other Local Transportation Funds. The proposed projects would be programmed for future fiscal years which 
allows the City time to plan for the expenditures beyond that which has already been done with the Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. RSTP Project Application Map 
C. CMAQ Project Application Map 

 
 
  

103



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
2015 RSTP & CMAQ Applications 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN, CALIFORNIA, 
SUPPORTING AND IMPLEMENTING AB 1012 “TIMELY USE OF FUNDS” 

 
WHEREAS, AB 1012 has been enacted into State law in part to provide for the “timely use” of State and Federal 

funding; and 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman is able to apply for and receive Federal and State funding under the Regional Surface 
Transportation Program; and 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman desires to ensure that its projects are delivered in a timely manner to preclude the 
Fresno Region from losing those funds for non-delivery; and 
 WHEREAS, it is understood by the City of Kerman that failure for not meeting project delivery dates for any phase of a 
project may jeopardize Federal or State funding to the Region, and 
 WHEREAS, the City of Kerman must demonstrate dedicated and available local matching funds.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby agrees to ensure that all project delivery 
deadlines for all project phases will be met or exceeded. 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that failure to meet project delivery deadlines may be deemed as sufficient cause for 
the Fresno Council of Governments Policy Board to terminate an agency’s project and reprogram Federal/State funds as 
deemed necessary. 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council does direct its management and engineering staffs to ensure all 
projects are carried out in a timely manner as per the requirements of AB 1012 and the directive of the City Council. 
 
The forgoing resolution was introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
6th day of January, 2016, by the following vote to wit: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
                                                
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
                                    
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

104



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
2015 RSTP & CMAQ Applications 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

105



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
2015 RSTP & CMAQ Applications 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 

 

106



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: JANUARY 6, 2016 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Direction Regarding 4th Street Concrete Repairs 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council provide direction to Staff on how to proceed with the repair of concrete improvements on 4th Street. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Due to a low point in the curb and gutter, there is intermittent standing water in the gutter on both sides of 4th Street 
between E Street and Kerckoff Park. The City has received a complaint regarding the standing water from the 
property owner at 690 4th Street. In order to address the drainage issue, a substantial amount of the curb and gutter 
will have to be replaced. The estimated cost of replacement is $30,000. Staff recommends that Council direct staff to 
develop a concrete repair project that would include the 4th Street repairs and include the project in the City’s Five-
Year Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City has received a complaint from the property owner at 690 4th Street regarding standing water in the gutter 
along his property. The property is located on the east side of 4th Street, between E Street and Kerckoff Park. A 
Vicinity Map is included as Attachment ‘A’ for reference. The eastside curb and gutter conveys both street runoff 
from 4th Street and runoff from Kerckoff Park, which is pumped into the gutter via a small pump station. Staff have 
reviewed survey data for the street and visited the site to inspect the condition of the curb and gutter. After review 
and inspection, it was determined that there is a low point in the curb and gutter on both sides of the street, located 
approximately at the north side of the driveway of 690 4th Street. This low point causes there to be standing water in 
the gutter, with a depth of up to 1.5”, every time there is runoff from the street or from Kerckoff Park.  
 
In order to address the drainage issue, approximately 60 percent of the curb and gutter on this segment of 4th Street 
will have to be replaced. In addition, the two existing driveways and several sections of sidewalk will need to be 
replaced due to existing damage. The estimated cost is $30,000. Due to the relatively small size of the project, unit 
costs can vary significantly, which could lead to a substantially higher overall cost. 
 
The repair of concrete improvements on 4th Street is not included in the City’s Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP), nor is it included in the City’s Budget. Typically, the City will include a larger concrete repair project in the CIP 

107



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
4th Street Concrete Repair 
  
when enough areas are identified to warrant a full scale construction project. The City recently completed the 2014 
Concrete Project which addressed substantial concrete damage on Stanislaus Avenue and 16th Street. The next 
significant concrete repair project was not anticipated for a few years. The following are two options to complete the 
required repairs on 4th Street: 
 

1. Council direct Staff to bring back an amendment to the current City Budget to include funding for the repairs 
and Staff move forward with having the repairs completed. The City’s CIP utilizes nearly all available Local 
Transportation Funds (LTFs) for the next 5 years and any funds allocated from LTFs for this work will result 
in a decrease in funding for a near future CIP project, likely a street sealing project. Council may also 
choose to allocate funding from another source. 
 

2. Council direct Staff to develop a concrete repair project, which would include the repairs on 4th Street, of an 
economical magnitude, and add the project to the CIP. Staff will be updating the CIP in the coming months 
for the next 5 years. It may not be possible to include the project for the next few fiscal years due to funding 
constraints.   

 
 Staff recommends Option #2, as there are other areas within the City that are in need of concrete repairs as well.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The estimated cost of the repairs is $30,000. The City’s Budget does not include funding for the repairs. If Council 
chooses to complete the repairs this fiscal year, the City’s budget will have to be amended. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Vicinity Map 
 

 
  

108



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
4th Street Concrete Repair 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

 

109


	Agenda
	Minutes
	December 16, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Accepting the California Avenue Reconstruction Project
	Staff Report - California Reconstruction Acceptance

	Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 364 S. Goldenrod Avenue and 424 S. Goldenrod Avenue
	Staff Report - Torres & Martinez Utility Agreements

	Renewal of Memorandum of Understanding with Fresno County Rural Transit Agency for Public Transit Safety and Security Services.
	Staff Report - Transportation Safety and Security

	Request for Donation from Kerman Pop Warner Cheer-Senior Team
	Request Letter

	Resolution Approving Addendum to Adopted Negative Declaration for the Double L Mobile Ranch Park Water Service Project (SCH #2013121030)
	Staff Report - Double L Addendum

	Resolution and Recommendation for Submittal of Applications for Federal Transportation Funds
	Staff Report - 2015 COG Applications

	Direction Regarding 4th Street Concrete Repairs
	Staff Report - 4th Street Concrete


